
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 04 27\2020 04 27 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

          
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

   Click link to join meeting:  https://zoom.us/j/93732653353  Meeting ID: 937 3265 3353 
 

 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Neil Belenkie will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, April 27, 2020 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, April 27, 2020 be approved as 

circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, April 6, 2020 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held April 6, 2020 be 

adopted. 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated April 27, 2020 regarding 

Update to Evangelical Laymen’s Church Temporary Use Permit No. 2019-01 
 Recommendation: 
 That the area for the Temporary Use Permit No. 2019-01 for Evangelical 
 Laymen’s Church be expanded to include the adjacent building to the Tea Room 
 to allow for bread baking to support “Breadmaking Workshops”; and 
 That the Evangelical Laymen’s Church (ELC) access condition be revised to 
 state that the Village must be provided with an Access Plan. 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
April 27, 2020 

7:00 PM 

https://zoom.us/j/93732653353


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  April 27, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 04 27\2020 04 27 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated April 27, 2020 regarding 
Annual Tax Rates Bylaw and Alternative Municipal Tax Scheme Bylaw 
Recommendations: 
1) That the Village of Belcarra 2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020 

 receive first, second and third reading and adoption;  
2) That the Village of Belcarra Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 

 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020 receive first, second and third reading and adoption.  
 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
7. BYLAWS 
8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 
 That correspondence items 8.1 – 8.16 be received. 
 ACTION ITEMS 
8.1 Crystal Dunahee, President, Child Find BC, letter dated April 23, 2020 regarding 
 Proclamation for National Missing Children’s Month and Missing Children’s Day 
 Recommendation: 
 That Council proclaim May as Missing “Children’s Month” and May 25, 2020 as 
 “Missing Children’s Day” in the Village of Belcarra 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.2 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes of  

Thursday, February 13, 2020 
8.3 Kiersten Enemark, Government Relations Director BC, Shaw Communications Inc., 
 email dated April 8, 2020 regarding #ShawHelps – Supporting Communities during 
 COVID-19 
8.4 Val van den Broek, Mayor, City of Langley, letter dated April 9, 2020 to Sav Dhaliwal, 
 Chair, Board of Directors, Metro Vancouver regarding COVID-19 Pandemic, Metro 
 Vancouver Budget Mitigation Measures 
8.5 Kerri Palmer Isaak, Chair, Board of Education, School District 43, letter dated  
 April 9, 2020 regarding K-12 Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic in School District 
 No. 43 (Coquitlam) (full report available at the Village office) 
8.6 Dennis Sterritt, Mayor, Village of Hazelton, letter dated April 15, 2020 regarding 
 UBCM Resolution regarding BC Gaming Grant 
8.7 Marvin Rotrand Conseiller Municipal – Snowdon, Ville de Montreal, letter to 
 Jonathan X. Cote Mayor, City of New Westminster dated April 20, 2020 regarding 
 Support for Federal Funding Assistance for Public Transit 
8.8 Ralph Drew, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 17, 2020 regarding Budgeting for 
 Firehall Replacement 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  April 27, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 04 27\2020 04 27 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.9 Verna Barrett, letter dated April 19, 2020 regarding Sasamat Volunteer Fire 
 Department History  
8.10 Des Wilson, Belcarra Resident, letter dated April 20, 2020 regarding Impact on 
 Village Finances  
8.11 Ian Devlin, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 21, 2020 regarding Comments on 
 Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee 
8.12 Martin Debois, Belcarra Resident, letter dated April 20, 2020 regarding Proposed 
 Major Capital Expenditures 
8.13 Doug Brain, Belcarra Resident, letter dated April 22, 2020 regarding “Water 
 Supply Capacity for Fire Protection” Committee Has Never Recommended the 
 Installation of a New Water Tank 
8.14 Ron Davis, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 21, 2020 regarding Unsafe 
 Parking Area on Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra 
8.15 The Hubbs Family, Belcarra Residents, letter dated April 22, 2020 regarding Sale 
 of Road Ends 
8.16 Paul Kallio, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 22, 2020 regarding Sale of Road 
 Ends 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 

That the April 27, 2020 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the Community 
Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to the public if 
the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of the following: 

(k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision 
of a municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the 
view of the council, could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of 
the municipality if they were held in public.”   

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the April 27, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



             
 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held April 6, 2020 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded.  

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark  
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder  
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator  
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 
Also in Attendance 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, K&E Business Services  
Brandon Ma, Partner, Audit, KPMG LLP 
Andrew Bordignon, Senior Manager, KPMG LLP 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Belenkie called the Zoom meeting to order at 7:00 pm.    
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, April 6, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, March 9, 2020 be revised by adding: 
 Item 8.12  Deborah Struk, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 3, 2020   

            regarding Sale of Road Ends  
 Item 8.13 Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, letter dated April 3, 2020  

            regarding Information 
 And be approved as amended. 

CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 April 6, 2020 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  April 6, 2020 

Page 2 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 04 27\2020 04 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, March 9, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 

That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held March 9, 2020 be adopted. 
CARRIED 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Brandon Ma, Partner, Audit and Andrew Bordignon, Senior Manager, KPMG LLP, 
 regarding Village of Belcarra Audit report  
 Brandon Ma provided a presentation on the Audit report for the year ended           
 December 31, 2019 with an overview of the Executive Summary. Council asked 
 pertinent questions. Discussion ensued. 
 B. Ma noted that the current COVID-19 outbreak is outlined in Note 17 of the Village 
 Financial Statement as a Subsequent Event. 
 Mayor Belenkie thanked the Auditors on behalf of Council and staff for conducting      
 the Audit.  
4.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated April 6, 2020 regarding 2019 
 Financial Statement Report 
 K. Bjorgaard outlined the report providing a summary of the Village 2019 Financial 

Results and Financial Position. 
 Council asked pertinent questions. Discussion ensued. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the Village of Belcarra 2019 Draft Financial Statements be approved. 

CARRIED 
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated April 6, 2020 regarding 5-Year 

Financial Plan 2020-2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020 
 K. Bjorgaard outlined the report noting that Bylaw No. 559, 2020 reflects the results        

of Council budget deliberations and related decisions. The Bylaw has been prepared 
pursuant to those decisions. 

 Council enquired with regard to exploring the potential to support Village residents    
under 55 who are not eligible for tax deferment through the provincial government.   

 L. Dysart advised that the topic of both a change in the property tax due date and the   
change in age for tax deferral, is being discussed with Regional Administrators. 
Information will be provided when it becomes available.   

 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the Village of Belcarra 5-Year Financial Plan 2020-2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020 be 
read a first, second and third time, and Adopted. 

CARRIED 
Councillor Clark voted in opposition 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  April 6, 2020 

Page 3 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 04 27\2020 04 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated April 6, 2020 regarding Village of 
 Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 561, 2020  
 K. Bjorgaard outlined the report. L. Dysart provided clarity on the User Fee for the 
 Fire Sprinkler System connection to the water system. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw  

No. 561, 2020” be read a first, second and third time, and Adopted. 
CARRIED 

5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated April 6, 2020 regarding Ongoing 
Planning Studies 

 L. Dysart outlined the report. Council discussed moving forward with the creation of lots 
from Village Land (Road Ends) in order to prepare them for sale. The OCP review is 
currently postponed and will commence when an election may be held for OCP Review 
Committee members. Discussion ensued. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 

That the report regarding Ongoing Planning Studies dated April 6, 2020 be received for 
information. 

CARRIED 
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
 Mayor Belenkie – Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) Update 
 Mayor Belenkie provided an update on the SVFD. He advised that operations are 
 continuing without any complications due to COVID-19. 
7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 544, 2020 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the “Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 544, 2020” be adopted. 

CARRIED 
Councillor Clark voted in opposition 

8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.13 be received. 

 CARRIED 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letter dated March 3, 2020 regarding      
 E-Comm Board of Directors Nominees 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  April 6, 2020 

Page 4 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 04 27\2020 04 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

8.2 Blanka Zeinabova, Deputy City Clerk, City of Burnaby, letter dated March 6, 2020 
 regarding letter to UBCM Member Municipalities regarding 2020 UBCM Resolutions     
 (full report available in the Village office) 
8.3 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letter dated March 9, 2020 to the 
 Right Honorable Justin Trudeau, Prime Minister of Canada regarding National 
 Pharmacare Program 
8.4 Kennedy Stewart, Mayor, City of Vancouver, letter dated March 13, 2020 to Mayor & 
 Council of the District of West Vancouver regarding Discriminatory Covenants,         
 Language and Encumbrances on Land Titles 
8.5 Lyn Hall, Mayor, City of Prince George, letter dated March 24, 2020 regarding UBCM 
 Resolution – Sharing Payments from Opioid Class Action Lawsuit 
8.6 Jerry Muir, Community Relations Manager, Lower Mainland, BC Hydro, letter dated 
 April 2, 2020 regarding BC Hydro Response to COVID-19 
8.7 John Willms, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 10, 2020 regarding Rebuttal to 
 Ralph Drew’s Letter 
8.8 John Willms, Belcarra Resident, letter dated March 26, 2020 regarding Village Concerns 
8.9 Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, letter dated March 24, 2020 regarding Sale of 
 Road Ends 
8.10 Shannon & Don Wightman, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 30, 2020 regarding 
 Sale of Road Ends 
8.11 Ralph Drew, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 3, 2020 regarding Letter to Belcarra 
 Council regarding Objectivity of Councillors 
8.12  Deborah Struk, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 3, 2020 regarding Sale of    Road 

Ends             
8.13 Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, letter dated April 3, 2020 regarding Information 
 Councillor Clark provided comments regarding Correspondence Items 8.8 and 8.9. 
 Conflict of Interest 
 Councillor Drake declared a Conflict of Interest. He noted that due to perception of a 
 Conflict of Interest, he will declare a Conflict of Interest with regard to the Road End on 
 Turtlehead Road. 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 Conflict of Interest 
 Councillor Begg declared a Conflict of Interest with regard to the potential Short Term 
 Rental and Bed & Breakfast Accommodation Policy. 
 Chief Jay Sharpe, Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) 
 It was requested that Chief Sharpe be invited to a Council Meeting to answer 
 questions regarding fire suppression systems. Council members will provide questions 
 to the Chief Administrative Officer prior to the invitation being issued. 
 Mayor Belenkie advised that Council members may forward questions they may have 
 in this regard to the Chief Administrative Officer who will compile the questions for the 
 Fire Chief.  



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  April 6, 2020 

Page 5 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 04 27\2020 04 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 Councillor Begg thanked staff for the work on setting up the Zoom Council meeting. 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 Paul Kallio, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to the status of the sale of Road 
 Ends in the Village. 
 Peter Struk, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to encroachments on Village 
 property. 
 Deborah Struk, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to the opportunity for residents 
 to purchase Road Ends. 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That the April 6, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 9:16 pm. 

CARRIED 
 
 
 

Certified Correct: 
 
 
 

 
 

    
Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

 File: 6410-04  
Date: April 27, 2020 
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Update to Evangelical Laymen’s Church Temporary Use Permit No. 2019-01  
 
 
Recommendations 
That the area for the Temporary Use Permit No. 2019-01 for Evangelical Laymen’s Church be 
expanded to include the adjacent building to the Tea Room to allow for bread baking to support 
“Breadmaking Workshops”; and 
That the Evangelical Laymen’s Church (ELC) access condition be revised to state that the 
Village must be provided with an Access Plan. 

Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to address questions from Council regarding the Evangelical 
Laymen’s Church (ELC) Temporary Use Permit (TUP) process and the associated access 
through Belcarra Regional Park. 
As a result of the recent denial by Metro Vancouver of the request by ELC for a road access 
agreement through Belcarra Regional Park for commercial purposes and a request from ELC to 
expand the approved area for the TUP for use of an adjacent bread baking building, staff is 
recommending two slight modifications to the proposed TUP conditions. 
 
Background  
The Village has received a Temporary Use Permit Application to permit the operation of a Tea 
Room and Bread & Tea Workshops by the Evangelical Laymen’s Church (ELC) of Vancouver.  
The Tea Room and Bread & Tea Workshops have been modestly operated for several years. 
Their operation has caused some administrative concerns since visitors access the ELC 
property via an unregistered road that crosses through Belcarra Regional Park. This road is 
used by Parks, Farrer Cove residents, ELC members, and others who require access. 
As a condition of the initial TUP, the Village required a suitable access agreement with Metro 
Vancouver through Belcarra Regional Park. On November 8, 2019, Metro Vancouver Parks 
denied the request for a formalized access agreement through Belcarra Regional Park because 
the intended Tea Room and Bread & Tea Workshops Uses were determined to be commercial 
in nature. Subsequently, Mayor Belenkie appealed to the Chair of the Metro Vancouver Board 
and on February 19, 2020 was advised by letter that Metro Vancouver would not grant access 
to use the road for commercial purposes.  
On March 10, 2020, the Village of Belcarra sent a letter to ELC providing an update on the 
proposed TUP conditions given the recent decision from Metro Vancouver to deny the request 
for a formalized access agreement through the Park. This correspondence included a revised 
access condition that suggested that the TUP could proceed as long as access to the ELC 
property is by water or by foot. In response to that letter, ELC indicated that they were amenable 
to the revised access condition and also indicated an interest in baking bread in the building 
adjacent to the Tea Room. As a result, staff is recommending two slight modifications to the 
proposed TUP conditions: 1) expanding the TUP area to include the adjacent building to the 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report: Evangelical Layman’s Church Proposed Temporary Use Permit 
April 27, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

J:\Files LD\Administration\Council Reports\Council Reports 2020\2020 04 27 Report to Council - ELC TUP Conditions Update (002).docx 

Tea Room to allow for bread baking to support the Bread & Tea Workshops and 2) revising the 
access condition to state that the Evangelical Laymen’s Church must provide the Village with an 
Access Plan.  
 
Discussion 
As a result of recent events outlined in the Background section of this report, staff is 
recommending two slight modifications to the proposed TUP conditions, as outlined in the table 
below. In summary, these changes include: 

1. Expanding the TUP area to include the adjacent building to the Tea Room to allow for 
bread baking to support “Bread Workshops” (see Condition a.) 

2. Revising the access condition to state that the Evangelical Laymen’s Church must 
provide the Village with an Access Plan (see Condition d.)  

 
Condition Notes 
a. The Tea Room Use and Bread & Tea 

Workshops Use must be contained 
entirely within the existing buildings and 
patio area identified by the red hatched 
line the plan attached hereto as Schedule 
A (“Temporary Use Permit Area”); 

Proposed change: expanding the TUP area 
to include the adjacent building to the Tea 
Room to allow for bread baking. See 
Attachments A-1 and A-2 for proposed 
changes. 
 

b. The Tea Festival Use must be contained 
within the area identified as “TUP Area 
permitting Tea Festival Use” on the plan 
attached hereto as Schedule A 
(“Temporary Use Permit Area”); 

No change proposed to this condition. 

c. An amendment to the Village of Belcarra 
Official Community Plan to permit 
Temporary Use Permits must be enacted 
prior to the execution of this Permit; 

Official Community Plan was amended to 
permit Temporary Use Permits on September 
9, 2019. 

d. A formal access agreement and path 
maintenance agreement must be reached 
between Metro Vancouver and the 
Evangelical Laymen’s Church prior to this 
permit taking effect and said agreement 
must remain in effect for the duration of 
this permit; 

 
Proposed change:  
d. The Evangelical Laymen’s Church must 

provide the Village of Belcarra with an 
Access Plan that outlines how patrons of 
the Tea Room and/or Bread & Tea 
Workshops will access the property. 

Note: The Village of Belcarra acknowledges 
that Metro Vancouver has denied ELC’s 
request for road access through the park to 
the ELC lands for commercial purposes.  As 
such, the Village is requesting that ELC 
provide an Access Plan. 

e. A “Tea Room” and/or “Bread & Tea 
Workshops” shall not operate on the 
property without a valid Business License 
from the Village of Belcarra; 

Minor editorial change to add “Bread & Tea 
Workshops” 



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report: Evangelical Layman’s Church Proposed Temporary Use Permit 
April 27, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 

J:\Files LD\Administration\Council Reports\Council Reports 2020\2020 04 27 Report to Council - ELC TUP Conditions Update (002).docx 

f. The Temporary Use Permit area may not 
be altered or improved upon in any way 
without the prior express written consent 
of the Village, such consent to be at the 
sole discretion of the Village; 

No change proposed to this condition. 

g. A “Tea Room” and/or “Bread & Tea 
Workshops” shall not operate without a 
Building Permit issued by the Village of 
Belcarra; 

Minor editorial change to add “Bread & Tea 
Workshops” 

h. Tea Room and/or “Bread & Tea 
Workshops” operations must cease 
should any deficiencies be identified by 
the Village of Belcarra Building Inspector 
and any deficiencies must be addressed 
prior to recommencing activities; 

Minor editorial change to add “Bread & Tea 
Workshops” 

i. No other commercial uses may be 
permitted under this permit other than 
those identified under Section 4 of this 
permit; 

No change proposed to this condition. 

j. A waste management plan suitable to the 
Village of Belcarra must be in place 
during the term of this TUP to prevent 
attracting wildlife, including maintenance 
of adequate signage in the Tea Room 
kitchen and at garbage disposal sites to 
encourage responsible waste disposal. 

No change proposed to this condition. 

 
Conclusion 
In conclusion, staff believe that the proposed changes outlined above are largely in keeping with 
the initial ELC TUP (see Attachment B), and that they will not result in material changes to the 
proposed TUP activities on the ELC property. 
 
Should Council wish to proceed with the proposed changes outlined above, staff will draft a 
revised TUP for ELC. 
 
 
Attachments 
A1 – Current TUP area permitting Tea Room and Bread & Tea Workshop Uses 
A2 – Proposed TUP area permitting Tea Room and Bread & Tea Workshop Uses 
B   – Temporary Use Permit No. 2019 – 01, ELC (8 Corners Canada Inc.)  



Temporary Use Permit Area and Tea Room Location
on Evangelical Laymen’s Church (ELC) Lands, in Belcarra, BC

Attachment A1

INDIAN ARM

DOCK

CAMP HOWDY

ACCESS ROAD

LODGE

TEAHOUSE

CABIN
OFFICE

CABIN

CABIN

ACCESSIBLE
PATHWAY

PARKING
LOT

WOODED
AREA

WOODED
AREA

WOODED
AREA

NEW 1:12
ACCESSIBLE

RAMP
C/W HANDRAILS

ACCESSIBLE
PATHWAY

5' - 6"

+/- 29' - 6"

5'
 - 

6"
+/

-3
4'

-6
"

5' - 6"

X

H/C WASHROOMS
(3 MALE / 3 FEMALE)

ACCESSIBLE PATIO

NEW
ACCESSIBLE

PATHWAY

EXISTING
PATIO

EXISTING
MEETING HALL

RENOVATED
TEAHOUSE

EXISTING
ACCESSIBLE

PATHWAY

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES

PROJECT CONTACTS

PROPERTY OWNER
EVANGELICAL LAYMAN'S CHURCH OF CANADA
CONTACT: BRYANT KO
3000 CAMP HOWDY ROAD
BELACARRA, BC

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND EXISTING CONDITIONS AT THE SITE
BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND ORDERING MATERIALS.

2. WORK DONE AS PER CONTRACT DRAWINGS SHALL CONFORM TO CURRENT B.C. BUILDING CODE
(2012).

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN AT HIS COST ALL NECESSARY INSURANCES AND INSURANCE.

4.  CARRY OUT ALL DEMOLITION NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE WORKS. SUPPLY TEMPORARY
SUPPORTS WHERE REQUIRED AS PER CODES & NORMS. REPAIR ADJACENT SURFACES.

5. STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, SEISMIC AND / OR ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS OR CONSULTANTS
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED AS REQUIRED BY THE CITY / MUNICIPALITY.

6. ARCHITECT TO BE NOTIFIED OF ANY / ALL MUNICIPALITY COMMENTS ON APPROVED PERMIT
APPLICATION DRAWINGS AS SOON AS RECEIVED. SCANS / PHOTOS TO BE FORWARDED FOR
REFERENCE.

PROJECT SPECIFIC CONSTRUCTION NOTES

7. DESIGN/BUILD CONTRACTOR FOR ALL ELECTRICAL WORK TO PROVIDE LETTERS OF
ASSURANCE AND SHOP DRAWINGS SIGNED AND SEALED BY AN ENGINEER REGISTERED IN THE
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA.

8. DESIGN/BUILD CONTRACTOR FOR ALL PLUMBING WORK TO PROVIDE LETTERS OF
ASSURANCE AND SHOP DRAWINGS SIGNED AND SEALED BY AN ENGINEER REGISTERED IN THE
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA.

9. DESIGN/BUILD CONTRACTOR FOR ALL STRUCTURAL WORK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO
SUPPORT OF NEW SAFETY GLASS WALL AND DOORS, TO PROVIDE LETTERS OF ASSURANCE
AND SHOP DRAWINGS SIGNED AND SEALED BY AN ENGINEER REGISTERED IN THE PROVINCE OF
BRITISH COLUMBIA.

ARCHITECT
ANYONE ARCHITECTURE + DESIGN
CONTACT: PETER SMITH
1106 - 1305 WEST 12TH AVENUE
VANCOUVER, BC, V6H 1M3
T: 604.506.0699
EMAIL: peter@anyonedesign.ca

CODE
PIONEER ENGINEERING CONSULTS LTD.
CONTACT: MICHAEL MESZAROS
1933 WEST BROADWAY
VANCOUVER, BC V6J 1Z3
T: 604.737.0333 Ext. 5 F: 604.737.0388
EMAIL: mmeszaros@pioneerconsultants.net

COPYRIGHT OF THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS RESERVED BY ANYONE
ARCHITECTURE + DESIGN. THE DRAWING AND ALL ASSOCIATED
DOCUMENTS ARE AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE OF THE ARCHITECT. THE
DRAWING AND THE INFORMATION CONTAINED THEREIN ARE TO BE USED
FOR THIS PROJECT ONLY AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR IN
PART WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN PERMISSION OF ANYONE ARCHITECTURE
+ DESIGN.

DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING.

CONTRACTORS SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, DATUMS AND LEVELS
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF THE WORK AND IS HELD RESPONSIBLE
FOR REPORTING ANY DISCREPANCY OR OMISSION TO THE ARCHITECT.

SEAL:

PROJECT NO.:

PROJECT TITLE:

DRAWING TITLE:

DWG. START DATE:

SCALE:

REVISION NO.:

DRAWING NO.:

12/08/13

1106 - 1305 West 12th Avenue
Vancouver, BC

V6H 1M3 Canada

604.506.0699
www.anyonedesign.ca
info@anyonedesign.ca

CONSULTANT:

PROJECT
NORTH

TRUE
NORTH

As indicated

1

A1

20170501

TEA HOUSE

KEY PLAN & SITE
PLAN

3000 CAMP HOWDY
ROAD, BELACARRA, BC

 1/64" = 1'-0"1 SITE PLAN

DATE ISSUE/REVISION

06/21/2017 ISSUED FOR BPA

KEY PLAN
N.T.S.

2 CAMP HOWDY 3D VIEW

DRAWING LIST
A2 GROUND FLOOR PLAN
A1 KEY PLAN & SITE PLAN
A3 ELEVATIONS
A4 ELEVATIONS & SECTION

Village of 
Belcarra

Port Moody

Anmore

ELC
 Lands

TUP areas in context of ELC Lands

Farrer Cove

TUP area 
permitting Tea 
Room and Bread 
and Tea Workshop 
Uses 

ELC Lands

TUP Area 
permitting Tea 
Festival Use

TUP area permitting Tea Room and Bread and Tea 
Workshop Uses outlined in dashed line

ELC Lands in context of Village of Belcarra



Temporary Use Permit Area and Tea Room Location
on Evangelical Laymen’s Church (ELC) Lands, in Belcarra, BC

Attachment A2

INDIAN ARM

DOCK

CAMP HOWDY

ACCESS ROAD

LODGE

TEAHOUSE

CABIN
OFFICE

CABIN

CABIN

ACCESSIBLE
PATHWAY

PARKING
LOT

WOODED
AREA

WOODED
AREA

WOODED
AREA

NEW 1:12
ACCESSIBLE

RAMP
C/W HANDRAILS

ACCESSIBLE
PATHWAY

5' - 6"

+/- 29' - 6"

5'
 - 

6"
+/

-3
4'

-6
"

5' - 6"

X

H/C WASHROOMS
(3 MALE / 3 FEMALE)

ACCESSIBLE PATIO

NEW
ACCESSIBLE

PATHWAY

EXISTING
PATIO

EXISTING
MEETING HALL

RENOVATED
TEAHOUSE

EXISTING
ACCESSIBLE

PATHWAY

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES

PROJECT CONTACTS

PROPERTY OWNER
EVANGELICAL LAYMAN'S CHURCH OF CANADA
CONTACT: BRYANT KO
3000 CAMP HOWDY ROAD
BELACARRA, BC

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND EXISTING CONDITIONS AT THE SITE
BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND ORDERING MATERIALS.

2. WORK DONE AS PER CONTRACT DRAWINGS SHALL CONFORM TO CURRENT B.C. BUILDING CODE
(2012).

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN AT HIS COST ALL NECESSARY INSURANCES AND INSURANCE.

4.  CARRY OUT ALL DEMOLITION NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE WORKS. SUPPLY TEMPORARY
SUPPORTS WHERE REQUIRED AS PER CODES & NORMS. REPAIR ADJACENT SURFACES.

5. STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, SEISMIC AND / OR ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS OR CONSULTANTS
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED AS REQUIRED BY THE CITY / MUNICIPALITY.

6. ARCHITECT TO BE NOTIFIED OF ANY / ALL MUNICIPALITY COMMENTS ON APPROVED PERMIT
APPLICATION DRAWINGS AS SOON AS RECEIVED. SCANS / PHOTOS TO BE FORWARDED FOR
REFERENCE.

PROJECT SPECIFIC CONSTRUCTION NOTES

7. DESIGN/BUILD CONTRACTOR FOR ALL ELECTRICAL WORK TO PROVIDE LETTERS OF
ASSURANCE AND SHOP DRAWINGS SIGNED AND SEALED BY AN ENGINEER REGISTERED IN THE
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA.

8. DESIGN/BUILD CONTRACTOR FOR ALL PLUMBING WORK TO PROVIDE LETTERS OF
ASSURANCE AND SHOP DRAWINGS SIGNED AND SEALED BY AN ENGINEER REGISTERED IN THE
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA.

9. DESIGN/BUILD CONTRACTOR FOR ALL STRUCTURAL WORK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO
SUPPORT OF NEW SAFETY GLASS WALL AND DOORS, TO PROVIDE LETTERS OF ASSURANCE
AND SHOP DRAWINGS SIGNED AND SEALED BY AN ENGINEER REGISTERED IN THE PROVINCE OF
BRITISH COLUMBIA.

ARCHITECT
ANYONE ARCHITECTURE + DESIGN
CONTACT: PETER SMITH
1106 - 1305 WEST 12TH AVENUE
VANCOUVER, BC, V6H 1M3
T: 604.506.0699
EMAIL: peter@anyonedesign.ca

CODE
PIONEER ENGINEERING CONSULTS LTD.
CONTACT: MICHAEL MESZAROS
1933 WEST BROADWAY
VANCOUVER, BC V6J 1Z3
T: 604.737.0333 Ext. 5 F: 604.737.0388
EMAIL: mmeszaros@pioneerconsultants.net

COPYRIGHT OF THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS RESERVED BY ANYONE
ARCHITECTURE + DESIGN. THE DRAWING AND ALL ASSOCIATED
DOCUMENTS ARE AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE OF THE ARCHITECT. THE
DRAWING AND THE INFORMATION CONTAINED THEREIN ARE TO BE USED
FOR THIS PROJECT ONLY AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR IN
PART WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN PERMISSION OF ANYONE ARCHITECTURE
+ DESIGN.

DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING.

CONTRACTORS SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, DATUMS AND LEVELS
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF THE WORK AND IS HELD RESPONSIBLE
FOR REPORTING ANY DISCREPANCY OR OMISSION TO THE ARCHITECT.

SEAL:

PROJECT NO.:

PROJECT TITLE:

DRAWING TITLE:

DWG. START DATE:

SCALE:

REVISION NO.:

DRAWING NO.:

12/08/13

1106 - 1305 West 12th Avenue
Vancouver, BC

V6H 1M3 Canada

604.506.0699
www.anyonedesign.ca
info@anyonedesign.ca

CONSULTANT:

PROJECT
NORTH

TRUE
NORTH

As indicated

1

A1

20170501

TEA HOUSE

KEY PLAN & SITE
PLAN

3000 CAMP HOWDY
ROAD, BELACARRA, BC

 1/64" = 1'-0"1 SITE PLAN

DATE ISSUE/REVISION

06/21/2017 ISSUED FOR BPA

KEY PLAN
N.T.S.

2 CAMP HOWDY 3D VIEW

DRAWING LIST
A2 GROUND FLOOR PLAN
A1 KEY PLAN & SITE PLAN
A3 ELEVATIONS
A4 ELEVATIONS & SECTION

Village of 
Belcarra

Port Moody

Anmore

ELC
 Lands

TUP areas in context of ELC Lands

Farrer Cove

TUP area 
permitting Tea 
Room and Bread 
and Tea Workshop 
Uses 

ELC Lands

TUP Area 
permitting Tea 
Festival Use

TUP area permitting Tea Room and Bread and Tea 
Workshop Uses outlined in dashed line

ELC Lands in context of Village of Belcarra



TEMPORARY USE PERMIT NO. 2019-01 

Issued pursuant to Section 493 of the Local Government Act, RSBC 2015, c. 1 

1. This Permit is issued to:
8 Corners Canada Inc. 
Incorporation Number BC1041748 
#148 – 1489 Marine Drive 
West Vancouver, BC V7T 1B8 

(hereinafter called the “Permitee”) as the owner and/or authorized occupier of that certain parcel 
of land situate in the Village of Belcarra, in the Province of British Columbia, and more 
particularly known and described as: 

Parcel Identifier: 013-595-695 

Legal Description: PARCEL “E” (EXPLANATORY PLAN 10236) 
WEST HALF OF THE NORTH WEST QUARTER 
SECTION 30 TOWNSHIP 39 NEW 
WESTMINSTER DISTRICT 

Civic Address: 3000 CAMP HOWDY ROAD 
BELCARRA, BC 
V3H 5B6 

(hereinafter called the “Lands”) 

2. This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all bylaws of the Village of Belcarra
(hereinafter referred to as the “Village”), except as specifically varied or supplemented
by this Permit.

3. The Lands have been designated as a Temporary Use Permit Area in “Village of
Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541,
2019”.

4. Notwithstanding “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018”, as amended, but
subject to the terms and conditions contained herein, permission is hereby given to
temporarily use a portion of the Lands as identified herein for the following purposes:

• “Tea Room,” defined as the use of premises for the primary purpose of
selling and serving prepared food and non-alcoholic beverages to the
public during hours of operation, where food and non-alcoholic beverages
are consumed on the premises;

• Tea Festivals;
• Breadmaking and Tea Workshops; and
• Uses of a similar nature.

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Temporary Use Permit No. 2019 – 01 

8 Corners Canada Inc.  

Attachment B



Village of Belcarra 
Temporary Use Permit #2019-01 
8 Corners Canada Inc.  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\Attachment 1 -  ELC Temporary 
Use Permit.docx 

5. The Temporary Use Permit shall be carried out according to the following conditions:

a. The Tea Room use and Breadmaking and Tea Workshops must be
contained entirely within the existing building and patio area identified
as “Tea Room Location” on the plan attached hereto as Schedule A
(“temporary use permit area”);

b. The Tea Festival use must be contained within the area identified as
“TUP Area” on the plan attached hereto as Schedule A (“temporary use
permit area”);

c. An amendment to the Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan to
permit Temporary Use Permits must be enacted prior to the execution
of this Permit;

d. A formal access agreement and path maintenance agreement must be
reached between Metro Vancouver and the Evangelical Laymen’s
Church prior to this permit taking effect and said agreement must
remain in effect for the duration of this permit;

e. A “Tea Room” shall not operate on the property without a valid business
license from the Village of Belcarra;

f. The Temporary Use Permit area may not be altered or improved upon
in any way without the prior express written consent of the Village, such
consent to be at the sole discretion of the Village;

g. A “Tea Room” shall not operate without a Building Permit issued by the
Village of Belcarra;

h. Tea Room operations must cease should any deficiencies be identified
by the Village of Belcarra Building Inspector and any deficiencies must
be addressed prior to recommencing activities;

i. No other commercial uses may be permitted under this permit other
than those identified under Section 4 of this permit;

j. A waste management plan suitable to the Village of Belcarra must be in
place during the term of this TUP to prevent attracting wildlife, including
maintenance of adequate signage in the Tea Room kitchen and at
garbage disposal sites to encourage responsible waste disposal.

6. The Temporary Use Permit Area shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms
and conditions and provisions of this Permit. This Permit does not constitute a rezoning,
subdivision approval, sign permit or building permit.

7. This permit is not transferable.

8. This permit shall lapse three (3) years from the date of issuance.



Village of Belcarra 
Temporary Use Permit #2019-01 
8 Corners Canada Inc.  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\Attachment 1 -  ELC Temporary 
Use Permit.docx 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION PASSED by the Village Council on the ___ day of 
___________, 20__. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Permit has been executed by the Permittee and this Permit is 
hereby issued by the Village the ___day of ______, 20___.  

8 CORNERS CANADA INC. 
By its authorized signatories: 

_______________________ 
Signature 

Print Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ___________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
Signature 

Print Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ___________________________________ 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
By its authorized signatories: 

_______________________ 
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor  

_______________________ 
Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\Attachment 1 Schedule 
A - ELC.docx 

8 Corners Canada Inc. 
Temporary Use Permit #2019-01 

Schedule A 
Temporary Use Permit Area 



 
 

 
 

              
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: April 27, 2020   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: Annual Tax Rates Bylaw and Alternative Municipal Tax Scheme Bylaw 
 
 
Recommendations 
1) That Village of Belcarra 2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020 receive first, second and third  

reading and adoption. 
2) That Village of Belcarra Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020 

receive first, second and third reading and adoption.  
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to present the Annual Tax Rates Bylaw and the Alternative Municipal Tax 
Collection Scheme Bylaw for first, second and third reading and adoption.  
 
Background 
Annual Tax Rates Bylaw 
The 2020 Annual Tax Rates bylaw reflects the tax rates required to raise municipal taxes for 2020, as 
approved in the recently adopted “2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw No. 559, 2020”, as well as the tax 
rates required to raise the funds requisitioned by the Metro Vancouver Regional District, pursuant to the 
Community Charter, as follows:   

“197 (1) Each year, after adoption of the financial plan but before May 15, a council must, by bylaw, 
impose property value taxes for the year by establishing tax rates for 
(a) the municipal revenue proposed to be raised for the year from property value taxes, as 

provided in the financial plan, and 
(b) the amounts to be collected for the year by means of rates established by the municipality  

to meet its taxing obligations in relation to another local government or other public  
body.” 

 
 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant 
Council Report: Annual Tax Rates Bylaw and Alternative Municipal Tax Scheme Bylaw 
April 27, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 

 

Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme Bylaw 
The Community Charter allows for Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Schemes under Sections 235 
and 236, which differ from the General Tax Collection Scheme as follows: 

a) The General Tax Collection Scheme is the normal tax due date of July 2 with a 10% penalty 
applied to late payments received immediately after this due date. 

b) The Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme may include one or more dates on which all or 
part of the property taxes are due and may establish penalties and interest to be applied in relation 
to payments made after the tax due date. 

The Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme Bylaw provides for some relief for taxpayers for 2020 
by allowing for a staggered late payment penalty of 2% for payments received after July 2, 2020 and on or 
before September 2, 2020 and a further 8% penalty for payments received after September 2, 2020. As 
required by the Community Charter, owners must be given the opportunity to elect to pay under the 
General Tax Collection Scheme or the Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme, with the Alternative 
Scheme applying should an owner not chose to elect an option. This however becomes a moot point in 
terms of this bylaw, as who would chose to pay the 10% penalty under the General Tax Collection 
Scheme as at July 3, 2020, versus the 2% penalty under this bylaw. These changes will necessitate some 
changes to the Village of Belcarra Tax Notice which will be forwarded for printing within the next 2 
weeks. 
As stated in the Bylaw, the penalty dates and related late payment penalties do not apply to the Village 
Class 6 (business and other) and Class 8 (recreation / non-profit) properties as the Province of BC recently 
stipulated that the Penalty Date for these properties will be October 1, 2020. The Village has a few 
properties that fall within these two classifications; therefore, an exception has been provided for within 
the Bylaw for these properties.  
 
 



  
 

 
A bylaw to set Tax Rates for 2020 

WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of the Community Charter, a municipality must, 
by bylaw, adopt a Financial Plan before the 15th of May in each year; 
AND WHEREAS the Municipal Council caused to be prepared a Five-Year Financial 
Plan for the period 2020 – 2024 inclusive; 
AND WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of the Community Charter, a Council must, 
by bylaw, and before the 15th of May in each year, impose property value taxes for the 
year by establishing tax rates for: 
a) municipal funding for the Year 2020 of the Five-Year Financial Plan; and 
b) to meet taxing obligations for the Year 2020 in relation to the Greater Vancouver 

Regional District. 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 
1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Village of Belcarra 2020 Annual Tax 

Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020”. 
2. Council does hereby impose and levy the rates for the Year 2020 for each 

property class appearing on Schedule “A”, attached to and forming part of this 
bylaw. 

3. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then 
the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to 
have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, 
subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

 
READ A FIRST TIME on  
 
READ A SECOND TIME on  
 
READ A THIRD TIME on 
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
   
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of the 
2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw 560, 2020 
 

 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 

 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
2020 Annual Tax Rates 

Bylaw No. 560, 2020 



2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 04 27\Bylaw 560, 2020 - 2020 Tax Rates Bylaw.docx2 

2 
 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

2020 Rates Established by Council  
(Dollars of Tax/$1000 assessed value) 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



  
 

A bylaw to establish an Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 

WHEREAS pursuant to Part 7, Division 10, Section 235 of the Community Charter a 
municipality may establish an Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme;  

AND WHEREAS the Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme may include one or 
more dates on which all or part of the property taxes are due and may establish  
penalties and interest to be applied in relation to payments made after the Tax Due Date;  

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Community Charter, Section 236, an owner may elect 
which of the following Tax Schemes to use by giving written notice of their choice of 
election to the Village of Belcarra before June 30, 2020: 

a) Section 234, the General Tax Collection Scheme; or 
b) Section 235, the Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme; 

 
AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 236 of the Community Charter, if an owner does 
not make an election, the established Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme 
applies. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 
1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Village of Belcarra Alternative 

Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020”. 

2. Property taxes for 2020 year are due on July 2, 2020. 

3. a) If all or part of the property taxes for 2020 are not paid by the July 2, 2020, due   
date, the Village of Belcarra will add to the unpaid property taxes a penalty equal 
to 2% of the portion that remains unpaid; 

 b) If all or part of the property taxes for 2020 are not paid by September 2, 2020, 
the Village of Belcarra will add to the unpaid property taxes a further penalty 
equal to 8% of the portion that remains unpaid.         

         c) The penalty dates and related percentages in 3 a) and 3 b) above do not apply 
to class 6 (business and other) and class 8 (recreation/non-profit) properties as 
the penalty date and related percentage for these properties are as stipulated by 
the Province of BC. 

4. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then 
the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to 
have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, 
subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

5. This bylaw will automatically repeal and cease to have force and effect on 
December 31, 2020. 

 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 

Bylaw No. 562, 2020 



Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 04 27\Bylaw 562, 2020 2020 Alternative Municipal Tax 
Collection Scheme Bylaw.docx  

2 
 
 
READ A FIRST TIME on  
 
READ A SECOND TIME on  
 
READ A THIRD TIME on  
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
   
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of the 
Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020 
 

 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 

 
 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2











prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9









prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.10





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11 Attachment





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.12







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.13



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.14



 

 



prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.15



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.16




	3.1 2020 04 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated April 6, 2020 regarding Village of  Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 561, 2020
	K. Bjorgaard outlined the report. L. Dysart provided clarity on the User Fee for the  Fire Sprinkler System connection to the water system.
	6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES
	Mayor Belenkie – Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) Update
	Mayor Belenkie provided an update on the SVFD. He advised that operations are  continuing without any complications due to COVID-19.
	Certified Correct:

	5.2 2020 04 27 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw and Alternative Municipal Tax Scheme Bylaw Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: April 27, 2020
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Annual Tax Rates Bylaw and Alternative Municipal Tax Scheme Bylaw
	Recommendations
	Purpose
	Background
	Annual Tax Rates Bylaw
	The 2020 Annual Tax Rates bylaw reflects the tax rates required to raise municipal taxes for 2020, as approved in the recently adopted “2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw No. 559, 2020”, as well as the tax rates required to raise the funds requisitioned...
	“197 (1) Each year, after adoption of the financial plan but before May 15, a council must, by bylaw, impose property value taxes for the year by establishing tax rates for
	(a) the municipal revenue proposed to be raised for the year from property value taxes, as provided in the financial plan, and
	(b) the amounts to be collected for the year by means of rates established by the municipality  to meet its taxing obligations in relation to another local government or other public  body.”
	Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme Bylaw
	The Community Charter allows for Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Schemes under Sections 235 and 236, which differ from the General Tax Collection Scheme as follows:
	a) The General Tax Collection Scheme is the normal tax due date of July 2 with a 10% penalty applied to late payments received immediately after this due date.
	b) The Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme may include one or more dates on which all or part of the property taxes are due and may establish penalties and interest to be applied in relation to payments made after the tax due date.
	The Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme Bylaw provides for some relief for taxpayers for 2020 by allowing for a staggered late payment penalty of 2% for payments received after July 2, 2020 and on or before September 2, 2020 and a further 8% p...
	As stated in the Bylaw, the penalty dates and related late payment penalties do not apply to the Village Class 6 (business and other) and Class 8 (recreation / non-profit) properties as the Province of BC recently stipulated that the Penalty Date for ...
	Bylaw 560, 2020 - 2020 Tax Rates Bylaw.pdf
	A bylaw to set Tax Rates for 2020
	WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of the Community Charter, a municipality must, by bylaw, adopt a Financial Plan before the 15th of May in each year;
	AND WHEREAS the Municipal Council caused to be prepared a Five-Year Financial Plan for the period 2020 – 2024 inclusive;
	AND WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of the Community Charter, a Council must, by bylaw, and before the 15th of May in each year, impose property value taxes for the year by establishing tax rates for:
	a) municipal funding for the Year 2020 of the Five-Year Financial Plan; and
	b) to meet taxing obligations for the Year 2020 in relation to the Greater Vancouver Regional District.
	NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Village of Belcarra 2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020”.
	2. Council does hereby impose and levy the rates for the Year 2020 for each property class appearing on Schedule “A”, attached to and forming part of this bylaw.
	3. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagrap...
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of the 2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw 560, 2020
	SCHEDULE “A”
	2020 Rates Established by Council
	(Dollars of Tax/$1000 assessed value)

	Bylaw 562, 2020 2020 Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme Bylaw.pdf
	A bylaw to establish an Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020
	WHEREAS pursuant to Part 7, Division 10, Section 235 of the Community Charter a municipality may establish an Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme;
	AND WHEREAS the Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme may include one or more dates on which all or part of the property taxes are due and may establish  penalties and interest to be applied in relation to payments made after the Tax Due Date;
	AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Community Charter, Section 236, an owner may elect which of the following Tax Schemes to use by giving written notice of their choice of election to the Village of Belcarra before June 30, 2020:
	a) Section 234, the General Tax Collection Scheme; or
	b) Section 235, the Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme;
	AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 236 of the Community Charter, if an owner does not make an election, the established Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme applies.
	NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Village of Belcarra Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020”.
	2. Property taxes for 2020 year are due on July 2, 2020.
	3. a) If all or part of the property taxes for 2020 are not paid by the July 2, 2020, due   date, the Village of Belcarra will add to the unpaid property taxes a penalty equal to 2% of the portion that remains unpaid;
	4. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagrap...
	5. This bylaw will automatically repeal and cease to have force and effect on December 31, 2020.
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of the Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020


	3.1 2020 04 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated April 6, 2020 regarding Village of  Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 561, 2020
	K. Bjorgaard outlined the report. L. Dysart provided clarity on the User Fee for the  Fire Sprinkler System connection to the water system.
	6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES
	Mayor Belenkie – Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) Update
	Mayor Belenkie provided an update on the SVFD. He advised that operations are  continuing without any complications due to COVID-19.
	Certified Correct:




